BY-LAWS OF THE MONTANA JAYCEES

ARTICLE I. NAME, PURPOSE

SECTION 1: NAME:

This organization is incorporated under the aws of he State of Montana and organized as a non-profit 501 (c)(4) corporation, without capital stock. It shall be known herein, by its members, and to the public as the Montana Jaycees and is authorized to do business under such name. The State Federal ID Number is 810372218.

SECTION 2: PURPOSE AND CREED:

- 1) This Corporation shall be a not-for-profit corporation, organized for such educational and charitable purposes as will promote and foster the growth and development of young persons' civic organizations in the United States, designed to inculcate in the individual membership of such organization a spirit of genuine American patriotism and civic interest, and as a supplementary education institution to provide them with opportunity for personal development, leadership development and achievement and an avenue for intelligent participation by young persons in the affairs of their community, state and nation, and to develop true friendship and understanding among young persons of all nations.
- 2) Toward these ends, the Corporation shall adopt the following as its Creed:
 - We believe
 - That faith in God gives meaning and purpose to human life;
 - That the brotherhood of man transcends the sovereignty of nations;
 - That economic justice can best be won by free men through free enterprise;
 - That government should be of laws rather than of men; That earth's great treasure lies in human personality;
 - And that service to humanity is the best work of life.
- 3) This organization shall be subject to the By-Laws of JCIUSA.

SECTION 3: PRINCIPAL OFFICE:

The principal and other offices of the corporation shall be at such places as are designated by the State President.

SECTION 4: POLITICS:

The Montana Jaycees shall refrain from any partisan political activity, and its members shall avoid mixing their personal activities with their Junior Chamber activities in a sense that the general public might infer that the organization is politically oriented one way or another.

ARTICLE II. MEMBERSHIP / DISCIPLINARY ACTION / MEMBER REMOVAL

SECTION 1:

- 1) A Local Organization Member (Chapter) shall be any young person's organization within the State of Montana, organized for the purpose consistent with that of this corporation and that of the USJC, and whose officers and individual members are young persons between the ages of eighteen (18) and forty (40). If any individual member shall be deemed an Individual Member until said member's next anniversary date; or, in the case of an individual member holding office in the State Organization or Local Chapter, until the completion of such term of office. No individual member shall be permitted to hold any office if said member has already exceeded the maximum age limit prior to commencement of the term of such office, except the Chairman of the Board shall be able to serve even if they attain the age of forty-one (41) on or before the commencement of their term for office. Any Local Chapter not complying with age limitation violates USJC Policies.
- 2) Applicants for Local Chapter-ship shall file with the State President a written application for affiliation. The application must include:
 - a) Name and permanent chapter mailing address.
 - b) A complete roster of the applicants' membership, showing a minimum number of twenty (20) individual members, along with a complete list of officers.
 - c) A remittance covering the charter fee of \$250.00 plus one (1) year of dues for each member as outlined in the Policies.
 - d) All other requirements as stated in the application for affiliation.

SECTION 2:

- 1) The Board of Directors, by a two-thirds (2/3) vote may remove the charter of any Local Chapter or may terminate the membership of any individual member with notice by certified mail not less than thirty (30) days prior to the date revocation.
- 2) Upon good cause, as determined by a majority vote of the Board of Directors, a member may be subject to disciplinary action.

NOTE: Disciplinary action or member removal by the State Board of Directors shall be pursued only in the event the Local Chapter is unable to arrive at a consensus.

- 3) Upon finding of good cause, the Board of Directors shall notify the membership of a potential disciplinary action against a member. Both the member and the membership shall have ten (10) days' notice of the disciplinary action to be voted upon at the General Membership Meeting. The notice shall include a) the name of the member subject to the disciplinary action; and b) the time and place of the General Membership Meeting where the vote on the disciplinary action will occur. The notice to the membership shall not contain an explanation of the good cause as determined by the Board of Directors; however, the notice to the member subject to the proposed disciplinary action shall include an explanation of the good cause as determined by the Board of Directors.
- 4) Upon satisfaction of the notice requirements, at the designated membership meeting, a member of the Board of Directors shall present to the membership the good cause supporting the Board of Directors

proposed disciplinary action and the nature and scope of the proposed disciplinary action. Following the presentation from the Board of Directors, the member subject to the proposed disciplinary action shall have the opportunity to present a defense to the proposed disciplinary action. In the event the member subject to the proposed disciplinary action fails to attend the General Membership Meeting without notice to the Board of Directors, the member waives, without reservation, his or her opportunity to present a defense to the membership.

- 5) Following the presentations by both the Board of Directors and the member subject to the disciplinary action, the membership shall vote on the proposed disciplinary action. As a condition precedent to the vote, a quorum of 25% of the current membership is required. The membership vote shall be determined on a majority basis.
- 6) The proposed disciplinary action is subject to the discretion of the Board of Directors and can include permanent expulsion from the Montana Jaycees and local chapter affiliate with forfeiture of all dues.

ARTICLE III. GOVERNMENT

SECTION 1:

This Corporation shall have three (3) governing bodies:

- 1) The Executive Committee as listed in Article III, Section 3A.
- 2) The Board of Directors as defined in Article III, Section 4.
- 3) The delegates to the semester, annual and special meetings of the corporation, referred to as "the delegates" or "members."

SECTION 2: Each Local Chapter in good standing as defined by JCI USA (See Article IV),

shall have a minimum of two (2) votes for each matter presented at the annual, semester, or special meeting. They shall also have one additional vote for each additional twenty-five (25) members, as stated in the Policies. The number of chapter votes shall be based on membership figures current to the time of semester deadline and as stated in the Policies.

- 1) All members of the Board of Directors, except for the State President, shall be eligible as a voting delegate for their home chapter.
- 2) Each voting delegate at any of the meetings must be registered with the convention prior to voting at any business session.
- 3) Delegates representing fifty percent (50%) of the Local Chapters in good standing constitute a quorum at any meeting of the corporation.

SECTION 3: There shall be an Executive Committee which shall consist of the following voting members:

- 1) The State President (only in case of a tie), the 3 Vice-Presidents (Vice President, Membership Development VP, Community Development VP), the Chairman of the Board (if of Jaycee age), the State Secretary/Treasurer and the Parliamentarian.
- 2) The following shall have the rights of Executive Committee members except the right to vote: Individual Vice President and Administrative Assistant.

- The Executive Committee shall meet at such times and places as designated by the State President as long as fourteen (14) days prior notice is given.
- A majority of the voting members shall constitute a quorum.

SECTION 4: The affairs of the corporation shall be managed by the Board of Directors, which shall consist of the following members:

- 1) The Executive Committee, voting and non-voting members.
- 2) Regional Directors, with one vote each.
- 3) Local President or a local officer representing the chapter, 1 vote each, provided that the chapter is in good standing; financially and in membership with the Montana Jaycees prior to the Board Meeting.
 - a) In the event that they cannot be in attendance, they may issue a written note of proxy prior to the start of the meeting.
 - b) The Board of Directors shall meet in conjunction with the semester meetings of the corporation, and at such times and places as designated by the State President, as long as fourteen (14) days prior notice is given.
 - c) A quorum shall be those voting members of the Board of Directors' voting members present at any semester meetings (with fourteen {14} days prior notice) called by the State President.
 - d) The members of the Board of Directors of this corporation shall serve from January first through December thirty first of the same calendar year.

ARTICLE IV: CHAPTER STATUS AND MAINTENANCE OF GOOD STANDING

Section 1: Provisional Status for Chapters Under 10 Members

1) If a chapter's membership falls below 10 active members, the chapter will be placed in provisional status for a period of 90 days. During this period, the chapter has the opportunity to recruit additional members to bring the total membership count to at least 10 active members. If the membership requirement is not met within the 90-day provisional period, the chapter may request a 180-day extension by enrolling in a corrective action plan (CAP).

Section 2: Corrective Action Plan (CAP) and 180-Day Extension.

- 1) Chapters with fewer than 10 members who do not meet the membership requirement within the 90-day provisional period may request a 180-day extension by enrolling in a corrective action plan. The corrective action plan should outline the steps the chapter will take to recruit new members, increase engagement, and achieve the goal of 10 or more active members.
- 2) Chapters are eligible for one 180-day extension per 12-month period. Failure to meet the minimum membership requirement of 10 members by the established deadlines, or failure to enroll in a corrective action plan, will result in the chapter's charter being revoked and members being moved to the "State at Large" chapter, in accordance with the chapter closure procedures outlined in Article XI of the JCIUSA Bylaws.

Section 3: Status for Chapters with 10-19 Members

- 1) Chapters with a membership count of more than 10 but fewer than 20 members may take one of the following actions to remain in good standing:
 - a) Pay for additional memberships to bring the total to 20 or more members. This will place the chapter in active and good standing status.
 - b) Enroll in a corrective action plan, which will allow the chapter to remain in active and good standing status, even if the membership count is less than 20.

Section 4: Status for Chapters with Over 20 Members

1) Chapters with more than 20 active members are considered to be in good standing and no further action is required to maintain this status. These chapters will not be subject to provisional status, corrective action plans, or any additional membership requirements unless membership drops below 20 members.

Section 5: Failure to take action for Chapters with fewer than 20 members

1) If a chapter with fewer than 20 members chooses not to take any of the actions outlined in Section 3 (i.e., paying for additional memberships or enrolling in a corrective action plan) and opts to fold, the chapter must follow the closure procedures outlined in Article X for chapter dissolution.

Section 6: Charter Revocation for Non-Compliance

1) Chapters that do not meet the membership requirements or fail to enroll in the corrective action plan program by the established deadlines will have their charter revoked. In such cases, the members of the dissolved chapter will be moved to the "State at Large" chapter and will no longer be associated with the dissolved chapter and follow the procedures in accordance with chapter closure procedures outlined in Article XI of the JCIUSA Bylaws.

ARTICLE V. ELECTIONS

SECTION 1:

- 1) An Election Committee will consist of the following members: State President, Parliamentarian, Chairman of the Board, State Treasurer, and Legal Counsel.
- 2) The Election Committee shall have the duty of formulating and publishing regulations to the election rules, interpreting and informing such regulations and the elections rules, including regulations adopted by the Election Committee and approved by the Executive Committee.
- 3) Rules and regulations adopted by the Election Committee, and approved by the Executive Committee, for the conduct of the election shall be published and distributed by mail or email to all candidates, as set forth in the Policies.

SECTION 2:

- 1) Those officers that will be elected at the election meeting shall be: State President, Vice-President, Membership Vice-President and Community Development Vice- President.
- 2) Each candidate must be an individual member of the Montana Jaycees and meet all qualifications as set forth in the By-Laws and Policies of the Montana Jaycees.

SECTION 3:

- 1) The nomination procedure shall be established by the Election Committee, and approved by the Executive Committee, as set forth in the Policies.
- 2) All nominations must be presented to the Election Committee one half hour prior to caucusing at the election meeting. Upon review and acceptance by the Election Committee of all nominations and materials required as set forth in the Policies, the Election Committee shall declare all candidates and the annual election valid.

Article VI. OFFICERS-ELECT

SECTION 1:

- 1) The officers of the Montana Jaycees elected during the election meeting shall serve as Officers-Elect for the period between the election meeting and December 31 of the same year. On the following January 1, the Officers-Elect shall assume the office elected during the previous election meeting.
 - a) The President-Elect shall serve as chairperson or appoint a chairperson of all planning committees for the coming year and shall have the authority to appoint all co-chairmen as necessary. This excludes the By-Laws and Policy Committee and the Finance Committee and other committees not specifically stated in the By-Laws and Policies. The President-Elect shall represent the Officers-Elect on the Board of Directors for the period between the election meeting and December 31 of the same year.
 - b) The President-Elect serves under the authority of the current President and is considered an active member of the current administration. The President Elect is expected to work on the current administration's plans and agenda except where spelled out by these By-Laws and Policies. The President-Elect is expected to refer all matters of the corporation's business to the current President. The position of President-Elect is one of a training position and is directed by the current President.
 - c) The Vice-Presidents Elect shall assist the current administration as directed by the President-Elect. The Vice-Presidents Elect will refer all corporation business matters to the current Vice-Presidents and are not members of the Board of Directors.

Article VII. OFFICERS

Section 1:

- 1) The officers of the Montana Jaycees shall be elected and appointed officers as follows:
 - a) The State President
 - b) Vice-President,
 - c) Membership Vice-President
 - d) Community Development Vice-President
 - e) shall be elected at the election meeting by a majority of the votes cast, as set forth in the Policies.

- 2) The State President shall appoint the following officers, which are subject to approval of the Executive Committee:
 - a) State Secretary/Treasurer
 - b) Individual Development Coordinator
 - c) Parliamentarian
 - d) Administrative Assistant
- 3) The immediate Past President of the corporation shall serve as Chairman of the Board.
- 4) Regional Directors: The Local Chapters within their own Region, shall hold an annual election meeting, no later than thirty days following the State election meeting, to elect a Regional Director. By January 1 or in case of vacancy the State President can appoint a Regional Director with approval of the chapter within the Region.
- 5) All state officers before being elected or appointed shall meet all membership requirements set forth in the By-Laws and Policies.

SECTION 2:

1) Duties - The duties and powers of the officers of the Montana Jaycees shall be such as are by general usage indicated by the title of the respective office, and as stated in the By-Laws and Policies.

SECTION 3:

1) Removal of an officer - The Executive Committee, by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of those present and casting votes, may remove any officer of the Montana Jaycees from office for good cause shown, provided however, that such officer is given written notice by certified mail with receipt no less than thirty (30) days prior to the date such removal is to be considered and after an opportunity to be heard by the Executive Committee. Proxy votes will not be accepted for this vote only.

ARTICLE VIII. MEETINGS

SECTION 1:

1) The election and the annual meeting of this corporation shall be held between August and October of each year.

SECTION 2:

1) Special meetings may be called upon written request of no less than a majority of the Local Chapters, at which time it shall be the duty of the President to call a special meeting for such purpose as is stated in said request. A special meeting may also be called by the President with the consent of a majority of the Executive Committee. Notice of said special meeting, stating the purpose of said meeting, shall be given to all Local Chapters at least thirty (30) days prior to said meeting.

SECTION 3:

1) Minutes shall be taken at all meetings of the Montana Jaycees, Executive Committee and Board of Directors. Said minutes shall be kept as permanent record, and shall be made available for inspection at the location of the Montana Jaycees office.

SECTION 4:

 The State President shall appoint such committees as deemed necessary for the purpose of furthering the programs and ideals of this organization. The President shall be an ex-officio member of all committees.

SECTION 5:

1) Bids from the Local Chapters for all meetings shall be outlined in the Policies of the Montana Jaycees.

SECTION 6:

1) The immediate past Board of Directors shall have complete decision-making authority in matters concerning previous year's business of the Montana Jaycees, and the awards and competition activities of the Year End Meeting in February.

SECTION 7:

1) The Incoming Board of directors shall preside over all meetings the corporation at Year-End Convention in February.

ARTICLE IX. DUES

SECTION 1:

- 1) Each Local Chapter annually pays dues to this corporation for each individual member, the amount of which dues shall be determined by a majority vote of the delegates as set forth in the Policies.
 - a) The amount of each individual member's dues shall be set forth in the Policies, unless otherwise determined by a majority vote of the Board of Directors.

SECTION 2:

1) On recommendation of a majority of the Board of Directors, the State President is authorized to disenfranchise any Local Chapter that is more than three (3) months delinquent in its dues.

SECTION 3:

1) No Local Chapter shall be eligible to receive awards if the Local Chapter has accounts receivable with the State organization. Participation in any USJC or Montana Jaycee awards program by an Individual Member of the Local Chapter shall not be affected.

ARTICLE X. CORPORATE PROPERTY, CONTRACTS, LOANS, CHECKS & DEPOSITS

SECTION 1:

1) <u>CORPORATE PROPERTY:</u> The Board of Directors may authorize any officer, agent, or agents to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the corporation. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

SECTION 2:

1) <u>CONTRACTS:</u> The Board of Directors may authorize any officer, agent, or agents to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the corporation. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

SECTION 3:

1) <u>LOANS</u>: No loan shall be contracted on behalf of the corporation and no evidence of indebtedness shall be issued in the corporation's name unless authorized, in advance, by a resolution of the Executive Committee. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

SECTION 4:

1) <u>CHECKS, DRAFTS, ETC.</u>: All checks, drafts, or other orders of the payment of money, notes and other evidence of indebtedness, issued in the name of the corporation, shall be signed by such officer, or agent of the corporation and in such manner as shall be determined annually by the State President with approval by the Executive Committee.

SECTION 5:

1) <u>DEPOSITS:</u> All funds of the corporation not otherwise employed shall be deposited to the credit of the corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as determined by the Executive Committee.

SECTION 6: FINANCIAL RECORDS:

- 1) The collection and disbursal of the funds of the corporation shall be recorded in a double-entry bookkeeping system. Said books shall be made available for inspection at the location of the Montana Jaycee State Office and at all State Meetings of the Montana Jaycees. A financial report shall be published and distributed to the Local Chapters at each meeting of the corporation and such other times as the Board of Directors may direct.
- 2) The financial records of the corporation shall be turned over to an audit committee by March 1 to be audited and an "Opinion Letter" shall be presented to the Board of Directors at the first meeting of the corporation, following sixty (60) days from March 1.
- 3) Two signatures will be required on all accounts of the Montana Jaycees. Of those two signatures, both shall not be of the same household.

SECTION 7. RECORDS, RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION:

1) All documents of the corporation and local chapters shall be maintained in accordance with the policies and bylaws of the United States Jaycees.

SECTION 8. ANNUAL TRANSFER OF FUNDS:

1) By January 1 all Montana Jaycees' account(s) will be transferred to the incoming administration with full explanation and accounting of moneys residing in the account(s). All state money intended for ONTO Year End Celebration will be transferred to the ONTO account by January 1 (the previous year's Executive Board will maintain control of this account). An accurate account of all money transfers of the ONTO account up u n t i l December 31 will be compiled for the current years financial records. An accounting of all money in the ONTO account as of January 1 will be handed over to the incoming years administration for budgeting purposes. The previous years ONTO account shall be closed by March 31 after the Year End Celebration. Any money left in the ONTO account March 31 and after all expenses have been completely taken care of from ONTO Year End Celebration shall be donated to a charity of the previous year's administration's choice. A complete accounting of all moneys in and the transactions of the ONTO Year End Celebration account as of January 1 will be turned over to the incoming years administration for accounting purposes at the end of their current year.

Article XI: Chapter Closure or Charter Revocation

SECTION 1: Notification of Intent to Dissolve

- 1) In the event that a local chapter of the Montana Jaycees, or the Montana Jaycees, wishes to dissolve or if a chapter's charter is revoked, the following steps must be taken:
 - a) Notice to JCI USA: The local chapter or state organization must notify JCI USA of its intent to dissolve. This notice should be submitted in writing to the national organization within 30 days of the decision to dissolve.

- b) Notice to Montana Jaycees: The local chapter must notify the Montana Jaycees of its intent to dissolve. This notice should also be submitted in writing to the Montana Jaycees board or executive committee within 30 days.
- c) Review and Compliance with Bylaws and Policies: The chapter must review and comply with the most recent version of the JCI USA's bylaws and dissolution policies. The chapter must ensure all requirements are met in accordance with these governing documents.
- d) Roster Submission: The chapter must provide a current and complete roster of all members to both JCI USA and the Montana Jaycees. This roster should include all active and paid members as of the date of dissolution.

Section 2: Appointment of Trustee:

- 1) The local chapter or state must appoint a trustee, officer, or responsible party to oversee the dissolution process. This individual will be responsible for the following duties:
 - a) Asset Transfer: The appointed individual will ensure the proper transfer of all assets of the local chapter or state, including financial accounts, physical property, and any other assets, to the appropriate entity as outlined in the chapter's and Montana Jaycees' governing documents.
 - b) Debts and Liabilities: The chapter or state must ensure that all outstanding debts, obligations, and liabilities are resolved. The chapter or state should consult a financial advisor or legal counsel if necessary to ensure that all financial matters are appropriately handled.
 - c) Tax Compliance: The chapter or state must ensure that the required federal tax filings are made in compliance with IRS regulations. Specifically, the chapter or state must file a Form 990 (or appropriate version of the form) for the final year of operation and ensure that all previous years' filings are up to date. The chapter or state must provide documentation of compliance to both JCI USA..

Section 3: Legal Notifications:

- 1) IRS Notification: If the chapter or state holds an individual Employer Identification Number (EIN), the chapter or state must notify the IRS of its dissolution by filing the appropriate paperwork. This should be completed in accordance with IRS guidelines.
- 2) Secretary of State Notification: The chapter or state must notify the Montana Secretary of State's office of its intention to dissolve the organization. This notification must comply with all state laws and regulations related to nonprofit organization dissolution.

Section 4: Final Report and Documentation:

1) The chapter or state must submit a final report to JCI USA confirming the completion of all dissolution steps. This report should include documentation of the asset transfer, confirmation of debt resolution, proof of tax filings, and any other relevant details. The chapter's official dissolution will be considered complete once JCIUSA and the Montana Jaycees have reviewed and accepted this report.

Section 5: Charter Revocation:

1) In the event that the Montana Jaycees or JCI USA revokes the charter of a local chapter, the chapter must follow the same dissolution procedures outlined in this section, including notification of intent to

dissolve, asset transfer, debt resolution, and compliance with all applicable bylaws and legal requirements.

Section 6: Bylaw Update and Compliance in the Event of Chapter Closure or Charter Revocation:

- 1) In the event of chapter closure, charter revocation, or if the remaining members of a chapter are unwilling or unable to assist with the dissolution process, it is mandatory for all chapters to update and reflect these changes in their bylaws. This includes but is not limited to the steps outlined in Article XI concerning chapter closure or charter revocation. Chapters must incorporate provisions within their bylaws that:
 - a) Ensure clear and actionable procedures for chapter closure and compliance with national and state-level guidelines, including but not limited to asset distribution, debt resolution, and tax compliance.
 - b) Define the responsibilities of chapter officers and members in the event that the chapter becomes inactive or unable to fulfill its obligations. This includes the appointment of a trustee, responsible party, or designated officer to manage the closure process.
 - c) Establish protocols for notifying JCI USA and the Montana Jaycees in the event of dissolution or revocation of charter, ensuring that communication is timely and accurate.
 - d) Provide a mechanism for transferring any remaining chapter assets and resolving any outstanding financial or legal matters to ensure that the chapter's closure does not negatively impact the broader Montana Jaycees organization or its members.
- 2) All chapters must ensure that their governing documents are consistent with these requirements and that they are prepared to take the necessary steps should closure or revocation occur. Any chapter found not to be in compliance with these requirements may be subject to further review or intervention by the Montana Jaycees board or JCI USA.

Section 7: Chapters in Article XI Sections 1-6 will be defined as the following:

- 1) Richland County Jaycees
- 2) Miles City Jaycees
- 3) Billings Jaycees
- 4) Dillon Jaycees
- 5) Central Montana Jaycees
- 6) Hi-Line Jaycees

ARTICLE XII: AMENDMENTS

SECTION 1:

1) These By-Laws may be amended by a majority vote of the accredited delegates at any meeting of the corporation provided a copy of the proposed amendment has been mailed or emailed, together with notice of the time and place of such meeting, to each Local Chapter at least twenty-one (21) days prior to such meeting.

- a) The Board of Directors at a meeting immediately prior to a meeting of the corporation may, pursuant to a three-fourths (3/4) majority vote, waive the requirement of prior written notice called for above.
- b) Changes in the By-Laws made at said meeting shall become effective January 1 unless a vote of the Board of Directors that are present at said meeting allows it to become effective immediately.
- c) No official vote or action on a proposed change in these By-Laws and Policies may be taken at a meeting of this corporation which has not been approved by a majority of the Executive Committee.

ARTICLE XIII: RULES OF PROCEDURES

SECTION 1:

1) The rules contained in Robert's Rules of Order newly revised shall govern this corporation and its constituent parts in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with these By-Laws and Policies.

SECTION 2:

1) In these By-Laws and Policies, the use of words of the masculine gender shall include the feminine gender as appropriate, and the use of words of the neutral gender shall include the feminine or masculine gender, or both, as appropriate.

SECTION 3:

1) All qualifications and credentials that may have been established in the US Jaycee organizations outside of the State of Montana shall be given full credit within the Montana Jaycees.

REVISION LOG

These By-Laws have been updated as of January 26, 1999. Bill Barnhart, 1999 Parliamentarian

These By-Laws have been updated as of December 9, 2000. Ronnie Jackson 2000 COB

These By-Laws have been updated as of January 12, 2002. Janet R. Prescott 2001 Parliamentarian.

These By-Laws have been updated as of January 11, 2003. Carrie Barnhart, 2002 Parliamentarian.

These By-Laws have been updated as of January 9, 2004. Jeanne Rickard, 2003 Parliamentarian

These By-Laws have been updated as of December 29, 2004. Todd Senescall, 2004 Parliamentarian

These By-Laws have been updated as of December 31, 2005. Howard Rickard 2005 MTJC Parliamentarian

These By-Laws have been updated as of December 31, 2006. Cliff Plum 2006 State President

These By-Laws have been updated as of December 31, 2007. Cliff Plum 2007 COB - Parliamentarian

These By-Laws have been updated as of November 9, 2013. Chamene Plum, 2013 Parliamentarian

These By-Laws have been updated as of September 9, 2015. Travis Velk, 2014 Parliamentarian These By-Laws have been updated as of February 18, 2017. Brad Kahler, 2017 Parliamentarian These By-Laws have been updated as of January 9, 2021.TJ Daulton 2021 Parliamentarian These By-Laws have been updated as of December 4, 2023. TJ Daulton 2023 Parliamentarian These By-Laws have been updated as of April 22, 2025. TJ Daulton 2025 Parliamentarian